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CHAIR MOLINA: The Public Works and Transportation Committee is now in session for
Wednesday, May 2 nd , For the record, Members in attendance we have
Vice-Chairman Dain Kane; Committee Members Alan Arakawa, Robert Carroll.
Excused today is Committee Member Riki Hokama. We have in attendance-COUNCILMEMBER KAWANO: Hey, Charmaine. Good morning.
CHAIR MOLINA: --Committee Member Pat Kawano and Charmaine Tavares. And we
have from the Corporation Counsel Mr. Howard Fukushima. Our staff, we have
Jan Inouye-Ogata; our Legislative Analyst and Jo-Ann Sato our Committee
Secretary and we will have a representative from the Public Works Department
coming to us real soon. Okay, we do have some testifiers, Members, this
morning. Public testimony will be accepted for each item on today's agenda.
Those wishing to testify should sign up at the Secretary's desk. Testimony shall
be limited to three minutes. An additional minute to conclude the testimony will
be granted to the testifier if testimony is not completed. Now, if after a total of
four minutes your testimony is not complete, you will be given an additional three
minutes after all others have been heard. Testifiers are requested to state their
name for the record and to indicate who they're representing. To minimize
disturbances during the meeting, please turn off all pagers and cellular phones or
set them to the silent mode. At this time, the Chair will accept public testimony.
Right now, first to testify on Item No. 32 we have Mr. Michael Maberry,
representing the University of Hawaii Institute for Astronomy to be followed by
Catherine Kilborn of lao School.
,

. . . BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY...
MR. MABERRY: Good morning, Mr. Chair; Council Members.
CHAIR MOLINA: Good morning.
MR. MABERRY: My name is Mike Maberry. I'm the Assistant Director of the
University of Hawaii Institute for Astronomy responsible for the institutes
operations here on Maui. By seeking changes to existing ordinances and
working to implement new additional restrictive ordinances relating to outdoor
lighting. It is our intent to preserve, protect, and enhance the lawful nighttime use
and enjoyment of any and all property through the use of appropriate lighting
practices and systems. Such individual fixtures and lighting systems are
designed, constructed, and installed to: control glare, light trespass, curtail the
degradation of the nighttime visual environment, conserve energy and resources
while maintaining safety, security and productivity. The Haleakala High Altitude
Observatory Site commonly referred to as "Science City" contributes more than
2
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40 million dollars to the Maui economy annually. Light pollution interferes with
the light sensitive astronomical research and space surveillance activities that
are undertaken there. Light trespass, which is light emitted by a lighting
installation, which falls outside the boundaries of the property on which the
installation is sited, is also a concern of our residents who have the right to enjoy
their yards at night without unwanted light pollution interference. Many of the
tourists who come to Maui enjoy our pristine and tranquil night sky. Most rarely,
have an opportunity to see a night sky with so little light pollution. From a tourism
standpoint, it is as important to maintain and protect our night sky as it is to keep
our water and our beaches clean. Our island is also home to endangered night
flying birds and nesting sea turtles that can become disoriented and injured due
to light pollution. Controlling light pollution will aid in the conservation of energy
and help reduce our dependency on fossil fuel. Thank you. Any questions?
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Maberry. Members, any questions for Mr. Maberry?
Hearing none. Thank you very much, Mike. Okay, next to testify we have
Catherine Kilbom of lao School to be followed by Mr. Doyle Betsill. She'll be
testifying on Item No. 19.
MS. KILBORN: Good morning. My name is Catherine Kilborn. I'm the Vice-Principal of
lao School. I'm here to testify on the closure or proposed closure of
Noeau Street, which currently runs right through our campus. Recently, we
acquired the old Armory grounds and so, it was never through our campus before
but fronting our campus. The school will be servicing approximately 1,200 kids in
the next two years, given that factor the school has undergone a master plan of
ten years of construction. Because of the construction plans and overall plan,
Noeau Street poses a hazard to our students who would have to be crossing it
everyday to get to and from classes as they do now. The road . . . urn ... goes
through the campus and then out to the end of Market Street on the makai side
of the property which services residences, that's the concern. We are proposing
that part of the road be closed but not the entire road, just to the "L" so that the
road stays open for residents and their use. There is plans for drop-offs for
buses currently in the master plan off Kaohu Street and for personal drop-off by
parents up on Market Street. So, those issues have been cared for. It becomes
very important for us to protect our students from traffic and we don't have the
personnel to station at a road and closed crossing. In addition to that, we have
tres...trespassing problems during the day or in the evening, I should say. We
are not able to gate this road since it's a County road and therefore our site is
often littered with beer bottles, used condoms and the like. In the morning, we
have to pick these things up, so it would be wonderful to be able to gate that
portion that is part of our campus. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. Members, any questions for Ms. Kilborn?
3
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MS. KILBORN: Any questions?
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. We have Mr. Kane to be followed by Mr. Arakawa.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Thank you for coming this morning.
MS. KILBORN: Sure.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. You, you mentioned that you folks
acquired the property--so that's the armory area that's all yours?
MS. KILBORN: That's correct. That is school property now.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: And then you talk about a master plan, is that something that the
State is already looking at as far as appropriating funds for?
MS. KILBORN: Funds have been appropriated for the planning portion which is now
complete and the open bidding portion for the renovation of the armory, actually
begins today.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: And that is--what?--they're looking at having that, making it into a
full on gym for the intermediate school?
MS. KILBORN: As it stands, what it will be is a three-story building. The bottom floor
will be our cafeteria, the second floor will be Administration, classrooms, and
conference rooms, and the top floor will be our library.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: How interesting.
MS. KILBORN: It will be the main entrance to the campus.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you very much.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Kane. Mr. Arakawa.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Catherine, in the acquisition process did you
approach the County to perhaps give you the roadway as well?
MS. KILBORN: I, I don't have the answer to that. I don't know what kind of action had
been taken with regards to the road.
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COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Let me ask you then, if we were to turn the, the
roadway to the school . .
MS. KILBORN: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: . . . would that be something that you would consider
desirable?
MS. KILBORN: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. Any other questions from the Members? If not,
thank you very much, Catherine.
MS. KILBORN: Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, next to testify--before we do, we'd like to recognize the
Public Works Director in attendance, Mr. David Goode.
MR. GOODE: Good morning.
CHAIR MOLINA: Good morning. We have Mr. Doyle Betsill to testify on Item No. 41
followed by Mr. Steve Sutrov.
MR. BETSILL: Hi, Doyle Betsill. Good morning everyone. I'm testifying on the, on
behalf of the proposed bill which will enable the County to issue building permits
using pre...pre-approved house plans. Not very often, we see something that's
such a win-win as this bill is. What it will do it will reduce labor on, on both on the
County and on the builder side. Because when we're presenting a plan which is
a duplicate of a plan that's already on record, it will enable us to short, have a
shorter application. So, I, I think this is a really good idea. It will help both, like I
say, both us and the, and the Department. As on the side, I'd like to say that we
often talk about our problems and the, and the, and the bad things that are
happening but I wanted just compliment the ... the Department that processes
our building permits. They're one of the friendliest and most cooperative
departments that that we encounter in our everyday business and I just want to
commend them. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you. Members, any questions for Mr. Betsill? Hearing none.
Thank you very much. Okay, next to testify and I believe--oh, we do have one
more--I'm sorry, We have Mr. Steve Sutrov who will testify on Item No. 32 to be
followed by Barbara Long.
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MR. SUTROV: Good morning. My name is Steve Sutrov. I'm here to testify for the
Kula Community Association on ... uh . . . this the light trespass issue. I was
just asked to come down to . . . uh ... let you know that our association has had
this as a major concern in the upcountry area for a number of years. In 1995, we
were sent a questionnaire from the Public Works Department that they were
drafting a new Street Lighting Standards for Maui County for basically subdivision
standards, I think, it was. And it was a very thoughtful questionnaire, it asked us
what we thought about different . . . uh .. . issues and we sent it off, I think, it was
Bob Horcajo at the time. And, and it seemed like from this draft that we were
given to look at and review on, very little was actually implemented from that in
the subdivision standard for, for lighting as of right now from what I understand.
But, we are very concerned about lighting issues upcountry, light trespass, along
with the observatory has a great deal of interest in this and we do also. It seems
like . . . dike with the Kulamalu lights . .with Everett Dowling's project
there . . . estate, went and worked with the developers rather than the community
and the community plans to, to incorporate that lighting there. And I think that's
where the County has to step in now and, and maybe review how the lighting is
actually implemented and, and, and agreed upon. Whether or not the County's
left out of the loop with, with no home rule once again, as far as what is
appropriate for a given area We have people like the. Street Lighting Committee,
that I'm not sure if we have representation from country, upcountry areas,
whether or not they, they look at everything as very urban. And because it
seems like safety concerns are definitely important, you know, there are reports
that I've, that I've read that lighting does not deter crime, there's no statistics that
say so. Most crimes actually happen during the daytime and, and also, you
know, if there's gonna be signage and, and lighting people are, going to be doing
what they gonna be doing anyway. I'm, I'm in support of a astronomical zone
above a certain elevation, no lighting at all Our association supports that And
in rural areas we need different standards, agricultural areas we need different
standards than, than the urbanized areas and, I think, the County has to look at
that again and, and see if we can have some enforcement, on that in future
planning. Thank you very much.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Sutrov. Members, any questions? Hearing none.
Thank you very much. And we have testimony now from Barbara Long who will
be testifying on Item No. 32. And, Members, you should have received a copy of
written testimony from a Dee Larsen on, Dee Larsen from Kihei who has given
written testimony also on Item No. 32. Good morning, Barbara.
MS. LONG: Good morning, Council Members, Chair, and representative from the
Public Works Department. I'm here, my name is Barbara Long. I'm here as a
former member and Chair of the Urban Design Review Board, which reviews
-6
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signage and lighting in the Special Management Area and around the island and
also, as a former Maui Planning Commissioner. And I'm here because the public
seems to have a growing concern about lighting standards and my experience
has brought me to a few conclusions. First of all, I called your Legislative
Assistant for this committee yesterday, Jan Ogata, and had some good talks with
her and tried to figure out where the different rules and standards are as far as
public and private lighting rules go. And Jan was able to find a number of them, I
have ... um . . community plan, I have administrative rules. We found
something, I think, from the State that had to do with lighting standards, the types
of lights that are used in streetlights, that sort of thing. What the result of all the
conversation was and looking at my file which I've had for years, is that there are
many concerns from DLNR to Urban Design Review to Planning Commission to
Planning Department, to actually what kind of lighting is legal, appropriate and
acceptable in the County. But there seems to be no place where all those
standards and rules are brought together to effect what actually happens. To
give you an example, when the Jesus is Alive Church came to Planning
Commission, we knew that there was going to be a parking lot. We said, of
course, staff will specify what kind of lighting will be in the parking lot. Low and
behold, they installed globe lights with no shielding so that there's enormous light
trespass. And apparently that leads to that fact that--and I'm sorry there's no one
here from Planning--that there is no rule, as far as Planning is concerned with
what type of lights, what intensity, what brand, what shielding are permitted, what
height, that sort of thing, when Planning Department staff approves parking lot
lights, security lights around car lots, that sort of thing. The standard comments
from Urban Design Review Board with regard to lighting in parking lots and
around buildings only have to specify the color of the lighting and the, the height
of the standard and they do not say what intensity. There is no standard for
measuring foot-candles, lumens or the glow from a light be it a sign or a parking
lot light or a streetlight. And in the 21' century, we certainly have the ability to
quantify, the amount of light, and that sort of thing would be easy to set up as a
standard and could be done. As Steve Sutrov said the, there was supposed to
have been a committee on rural standards; should be agricultural standards as
well And to my knowledge there were no recommendations as far as lighting of
signs, streetlights, tennis court lights, public lights, private lights in the Rural, and
Ag areas. And we really need to deal with that, not only from an environmental
point of, view, from a smart energy point of view but also from a good neighbor
point of view. I'm here to urge you because of all of these issues; the
observatory, the birds, the environment, the energy use I don't know what our
taxpayer bill is for maintaining these streetlights that we use and how much
money could be saved if different kinds of lights were to be used but that is
some...something certainly that we need to know. But, I'm here to ask that you
study this question as thoroughly as you can, finding some sort of basis for what
is now on the books, State and County, what is actually recommended. And then
7
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go to the experts, which would include the International Dark Skies Association
that I think you're gonna have information from, and from engineers and from
lighting experts and from the community. And find out what is the most beneficial
way to light our community for safety, for the environment, for good neighbors,
for consideration and to, to make it sort of a standard, sort of set of rules and
guidelines. And that's, that's what I, I urge that you will do.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Bar...thank you, Barbara.
MS. LONG: Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Members, any questions? Mr. Carroll.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Yes, Barbara, obviously, you looked at this long and
hard. What do you feel is the worse source of . . . light that . . . streetlights,
housing, what do you think is the worse, the thing that you would address first
that has the most impact?
MS. LONG: We recently moved up to Keokea. We live at 3,500 feet and we have a
view of the whole island, I mean, from the south shore to the north shore. And I
will tell you that it's a toss up between the highway lights--and somehow the DOT
loves overkill--the highway lights, and the lights that seem to be around the big
box industrial areas. Those are the ones that really set off a glow. I won't even
mention the stadium lights at King K because they're not on all the time but when
they are you notice that.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: You talking about the security lights?
MS. LONG: I'm talking about the, the halogen security lights that the industrial area
people, I guess, to prevent crime or whatever have these lights that put out
enormous intensities. Shining, they're generally placed high on the sides of their
buildings and they're not shielded so that you get a glow that goes up as well as
down. And you just, you're invited up there . . . come and sit on our deck and
look at the glow that you can see from these lights. And I, I wonder really if it's
necessary and why, why they're doing it and what bad impacts it has.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Carroll. Members, any other questions for Ms. Long?
Mr. Arakawa.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Yeah, Barbara, because you were on the Committee
that was looking at, at this, there are some standards that the committee, I
8
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guess, the Commission actually put forth and working with the Department
through this Streetlight And Standards. In the-MS. LONG: Okay, I was ... yeah, I was not on that committee, Alan.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Okay. In that case, I won't ask you why certain things
weren't put in there.
MS. LONG: Okay, 'cause I couldn't tell you.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA:
Yeah, it's just that there's a high-pressure
requirement in there and if the commission were, were working on that I was
gonna ask you why did you guys do that. But, since you weren't on it, I won't ask
you.
MS. LONG: Well, I, I would like to say that the International Dark Skies guys and, and I
don't know what material Jan was able to find on that, but I have some with me,
recommends low pressure sodium. Not only for energy saving but because of
the reduction in intensity and light trespass.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: You were on the Committee, right?
MS. LONG: No.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: You weren't on this Commission?
MS. LONG: No.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Okay.
MS. LONG: No.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Then I won't get into this, anymore questions. Thank
you.
MS. LONG: Okay, but that's, that's what I hope you'll study is the alternatives that are
out there. Thank you very much.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Members, any other questions for Ms. Long? If not, thank you
very much. Let see, Mister...Members, for the record, Mr. Maberry has
requested to give additional testimony on Item 32. Are there any objections to
having Mr. Maberry ?
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: No, no objections.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay.
MR. MABERRY: Mr. Chair, Council Members, just to address the Council Members
question, there is a--and I don't know if this is appropriate I only have one
personal copy--but there is a report from the Street Lighting . . . (INAUDIBLE) . .
okay.
CHAIR MOLINA: Yeah, Mr. Ma...
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Give it to Jan.
MR. MABERRY: There was a report that issued from the Chairperson of the
Subdivision Engineering Standards Committee on March 7, 1997, that, regarding
street lighting standards for the County of Maui. And it clearly specifies that the
Committee, after taking testimony from the community and from community
associations, recommended the use of low-pressure sodium vapor lights, lamps
for street lighting. And they cited testimony also from Big Island Law
Enforcement Officers and they mentioned, too, that the Big Island had converted
to that standard back in 1982 and continues to do so to this day, sir.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Okay. Thank you. I'm just reading off of the, what's
there.
MR. MABERRY: Yes, sir. I, I must, I would like to quickly take the opportunity to point
out that for some reason the version that is actually being enforced as far as light
standards, do not, does not represent the recommendation of the committee.
And I, I just learned this yesterday and I haven't had the opportunity to try to
determine how it got changed from the Committee's recommendation to, back to
the High Pressure Sodium Vapor Lights. I, I'm curious as to see why that the,
you know, it's just obvious that the community wanted Low Pressure Sodium
Vapor Lights and I'm curious to find out if, whether or not the Council did also.
And, and I just don't have an answer to that right at this time.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Any, Members, any questions for Mr. Maberry? If not, thank
you very much. Okay, is there anybody else who would want to testify today?
Okay. Seeing none.
... END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY . .
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ITEM NO. 32: RE: OUTDOOR LIGHTING (C.C. 00-125)
CHAIR MOLINA: We shall go ahead and proceed with our agenda item. First, Item
No. 32 and for the record, the Chair did invite for this particular item the, a
representative from Public Works, a representative from the Prosecuting Attorney
and I see Mr. Acob out there in the gallery. I, I will ask you later on if you would
like to comment on this issue. A representative from the Police Department and,
of course, Mr. Maberry from the University of Hawaii along with Skippy Hau from
the Department of Land and Natural Resources and Hannah Bernard, the
representative, representative of the Hawaii Wildlife Fund. Just a quick brief
history about this item. It was brought forth during the last Council term by a
Molokai resident, his name is Mr. George Peabody, requesting that the Council
consider legislation to abate the trespass of light. Subsequently, the
Public Works and Water Committee, as established last term received the bill
proposed by Mr. Maberry of the University of Hawaii Institute for Astronomy,
relating to outdoor lighting. Comments on the proposed bill were solicited from
the Department of the Prosecuting Attorney and the Police Department. At the
meeting of August 30, 2000, a representative from the Prosecuting Attorney
expressed concerns relating to enforcement of the bill which led to the transmittal
of all pertinent information to the Subdivision Engineering Standards Committee.
And we are in receipt of a response from the Subdivision, Subdivision
Engineering Standards Committee as transmitted by the Director of Public Works
and Waste Management dated April 2 nd of this year And with that, I'd like to ask
Mr. Goode to give us an overview of the Committee's decision.
MR. GOODE: Thank you, Chairman. Subdivision Engineering Standards Committee
has been involved in this issue for a long time on a couple of different fronts.
One, of course, is lighting standards as it relates to streetlights and then
secondly, they were asked to comment on the communication from this
committee as it relates to outdoor lighting in general. Their most recent
communication was from last month had to do with the general applicability of
outdoor lighting. And because the Subdivision Engineering Standards
Committee scope of what they look at has to do with the standards of
subdivisions, they really felt that street lighting was one of the areas that they
really have focus on. So, they felt that as it relates to other sources of light, that
those . . . they're not the appropriate committee and that, perhaps those concerns
could be deait with at the time of say, SMA approval. They pointed to SMA
approval because some of the documents that were sent to them had to do with
the influence of outdoor lighting on nesting turtles and other marine habitat. So,
that was the recommendation as of late.
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CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Goode. Members, any questions for
Mr. Goode? Okay, hearing none.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR MOLINA: Yes. Okay. Mr. Kane.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Mr. Goode, as far as conversion, do you folks have any ideas
what it would cost us to convert from the high to low sodium . . . in the County for
all County . . . whatever we're responsible for? Any idea, is that a type of
question you have . .
MR. GOODE: Not off the top of my head. I'd have to research it.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Is that something we could look at taking a direction?
MR. GOODE: Well, it'd be in direct conflict with our current standards. So, we'd have
to amend the standards and then take a look at that . . . or do it concurrently.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Okay. Is that, is that part of the, the discussion today as far as us
meeting the standards? Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Mr. Arakawa.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Dave, in . . . the paper the other day, there was a
comment about maintaining the streetlights and keeping a single type of light as
a standard, so Maui Electric could do that because of cost factors. That's a
consideration, but in my mind, is, is there a deeper consideration in, in why
you're doing the high intensity as far as safety or what, what is the reason to not
want to shift to low intensity?
MR. GOODE: If I could give a, a general explanation. Maybe at this point it would be
appropriate to give a little background into our current standards and that would
help me answer that question.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Okay.
MR. GOODE: You know, it's been brought to my attention this, this letter dated March

7 th 1997, regarding the time Bob Horcajo was chairperson of the Subdivision
Engineering Standards Committee. And I haven't read it in detail but essentially
it appears to mention that they prefer low pressure sodium. This is just part of a
long record and the Subdivision Engineering Standards Committee actually
finalized these rules sometime in 1999, I believe. So, there was a lot more
,
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discussion than this three page letter and I'd have to do a little more personal
research to understand exactly why it was changed but it wasn't something that
was done in a vacuum. There was a lot of discussion about this. And the current
standards . . . do specify high-pressure sodium, which in terms of light intensity is
a lot less than say, what they call mercury vapor, the old standard. But, it is more
intensive at least per wattage than low-pressure sodium and low-pressure
sodium has other . . . drawbacks as well as positive features as it relates to
safety, the marine environment, glow to the, the atmosphere and other things.
But, the current standards did change quite a few things: one, it required that all
new lights be fully shielded, so that the light that is directed is directed downward.
It also set standards for the amount of wattage those particular lights would be in
urban areas and a reduction of 33 percent for Rural and Ag areas. It also
eliminated the need to have mid-block lights. So, if you're in a subdivision, you
should see lights not only at the intersections but if the block was rather long,
you'd see lights along the way. It completely eliminated the need for mid-block
lights in Urban, Rural and Ag areas. So, it cut out a lot of lighting and it required
all lighting to be fully shielded. That's kind of a, in a nut shell, the big areas that
overall it reduced substantially at least from where we were . . . to what, to what it
can be. It also gave the direction to remove lights that may not be needed and
that's something we're still working on because we'd like to have a mechanism
rather than just going in randomly and start removing lights. We need to really
work with the people that live near those lights because the fact is a lot of people
like 'em but a lot of people don't So, rather than just going in and removing them
randomly we, we still need to work on that but it allowed us to do that through
these rules. But I, I'd have to get back to the Committee, if the committees
interested in knowing why there is low pressure sodium. There seemed to be a
recommendation in March of 1997 but by 1999 it was no longer a
recommendation. I know one of the major concerns was from the Police
Department in terms of trying to identify colors of . . . vehicles or people that
might be involved in a crime and maybe Corporation Counsel has something to
add on that.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Alright. Mister, Corp. Counsel to comment on it.
MR. FUKUSHIMA: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Yes, I, I staffed the Subdivision
Engineering Standards Committee while they were discussing this. And while
their initial . . . recommendation was for low pressure sodium's, that after more
information was gathered and when they were considering the, the rule in it's
final form, High Pressure Sodium Lights appeared to be more . . . more
appropriate. And I think one of the, the primary reasons was concerns from the
law, law enforcement agencies with respect to color, I believe, if we used low
low-pressure sodium it's not a matter of merely changing a bulb. The County
with, with cooperation from or with Maui Electric, I think, about four or five years
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ago we entered into an agreement to replace all mercury vapor lights with these
high pressure sodium lights. And that program, I believe, was concluded say one
or two years ago and all lights on the County roadways are presently high
pressure sodium's. But, as the Director stated, there was much discussion in
the, in the Subdivision Engineering Standards Committee with respect to high
pressure sodium's versus low pressure sodium's. And the, the final outcome
was the, the, they recommended approval of the Director's ... the, the rules to
be adopted by the Director which included the high pressure sodium lights.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you. Mr. Arakawa.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Yes, Mr. Chairman. I knew there had to be a reason
for this and I'd like to get the, the documentation that they're talking about, the
record of some of that discussion. I do know that a lot of times, the seniors have
been coming to me and asking for streetlights because it's too dark and they
don't like the, the low-pressure lights. They prefer the high pressure lights
because of their, their vision problems. But there's also a, in my mind, hopefully
part of that discussion will also be where lot of lights are con...you got a lot of
lights in one area. And areas like the shopping complexes whether it's
necessary to go all high pressure or maybe in those areas it might be more
appropriate for low pressure versus areas where there are few traffic lights or
streetlights in between. That discussion, hopefully will, will have occurred so we
can understand what's going on. It seems like a simple process but I'm almost
positive in my mind it's not as simple as . . what it, what it appears to be just
changing a light. And the article in the paper the other day as far as what Maui
Electric is doing seems to make it a little more complicated, in my mind, as to the
cost of conversion and there might be more to it. So, I'd like to explore that a
little bit more.
.

CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Arakawa. Okay, the Chair would now like to
ask for comments from the Prosecuting Attorney's office, if they choose to do so
at this time. Also, we'd like to welcome Mr. Skippy Hau from the
State Department of Land and Natural Resources to our Committee meeting
today. Mr. Acob, you can have, have a seat right here.
MR. ACOB: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR MOLINA: Good morning.
MR. ACOB: Good morning, Committee Members. We understand the concerns of, of
the people that testified today as well as . . . um . . . the concerns of law
enforcement agencies and the old citizens that Mr. Arakawa had ... mentioned
earlier. Apparently, there must be a standard right now of what the . . . proper
-14-
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lights are or proper lumens or wattage, and I've never seen any violation of, of
those rules or ordinances if, if they do exist. And if there were, I guess, the, the
concerns that we would have is, if we are talking about lumens, somebody would
have to come to the, to court and testify that such and such light is above this
number of lumens. Now that, that would be somebody, an expert, that would be
able to testify as to that. Because a neighbor complaining about lights from his
neighbor testifying, it's so bright that I can't see, it's so subjective that that
wouldn't stand in court. So, we would need someone to come and testify that,
yeah, such . . . light is above number of lumens. It appears to me that one of the
concerns here is that a lot of the lights don't have shields and that probably
would be a good starting point because that is not subjective at all. If . . if
there's a shield required for all types of lights or certain types of lights and there's
no shield then there's a violation. Unless, of course, we have to prove that that
certain light has to be ... if it's above a certain lumens would have to have a
shield then we'd be back to the same, same concern that we have But, you
know, this probably would be not more than a misdemeanor type of offense
possibly a petty misdemeanor or a violation and to prove such a, such an offense
probably would be very expensive it's possible. And we're not against it, I guess,
we'd, we'd have to try our best, we just have to ask that whatever is drafted is
enforceable for us, make it a little bit easier for us. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA:
Thank you, Mr. Acob.
Members, any questions for the
Prosecuting Attorney's office? Hearing none. Thank you very much, Mr. Acob.
Next, I'd like to call upon the representative from the Police Department,
Officer Tam Ho, for his comments on this item.
MR. TAM HO: Good morning. From a law enforcement standpoint, lighting is a very
good thing. We send our officers, our Community Police Officers, we send 'em,
send them to a special school regarding Crime Prevention Through
Environmental Design, and they learn, there's a phase that covers all lighting.
What happens is any, any condo, hotel, any business establishment, they call
upon us, we, we send our community officers to do an assessment and one of
the areas would be lighting. And besides lighting would be shrubbery, different
structures; fences, and our, our main goal is, is crime prevention. So, as far as
lighting issues, were all for lighting. Its been proven that it deters crime, like,
you know, if you have a troubled area where people gather and if the owners
take the stand where they, they implement lighting, instantly, that problem goes
away.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Officer Tam Ho. Members, any questions?
Mr. Carroll.
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COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: I think we all agree on that. What we're really talking
about is the intensity of lighting. It was brought up about like the big box stores, it
seems like it's very safe over there but you really need daylight. I mean, right
over there, I mean, you stand over there it's like high noon on a clear day, the
lighting. You really need that intensity of lighting for public safety.
,

MR. TAM HO: Well, if for public safety, yes, you need the best lighting. I mean, as far
as police, we'd like it to be almost like day, you know, what I mean? That's the
best that's the optimum goal as far as crime fighting. You know, you looking at
public safety or ambiance, what do you want? If you ask a law enforcement
officer, we'll go with the best lighting possible. That's our stand on that.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Carroll. Members, any other questions for
Officer Tam Ho? If not, thank you very much, Officer Tam Ho. Oh, I'm sorry, we
have Mr. Arakawa.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Yeah. Officer Tam Ho, a particular, I'm gonna, I'm
gonna use this example of the lights in front of King Kekaulike, the school up
there. There's a series of light, streetlights, that are very intense there. If those
were to be lessened by 50 percent or if they were to put a shield on top of it so
that it doesn't illuminate upward, I mean, do the full shielding there. Would that
adversely affect the Police Officers from seeing things that are low?
MR. TAM HO: I can't answer that. As far as determining the lumens or the, the glow of
the light, that's, that's for the experts, it's not for the police. I'm just telling you the
police standpoint is we, we want the best. So, give us the best and if you want to
cut it down, it's up to you.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Okay, so you're, your preference would be 360
degree light all over the place from a police standpoint?
MR. TAM HO: Well, where, wherever there's a light, hopefully, it's a, it's a, it's a good
adequate light, a light source that we can do our--it, it aids us in our work. So,
you know, we'll work with anything, whatever you put in place we'll deal with it
but like I said, our, our stand is that we're looking at the best light possible. And,
and for the community that should be the stand, best light possible, public safety
or like I said ambiance; what are you looking for?
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Thank you.
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CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Arakawa. Members, any other questions for
Officer Tam Ho? Seeing none. Thank you very much, Officer Tam Ho. Okay.
We have Mr. Skippy Hau from the Department of Land and Natural Resources.
If Mr. Hau would like to comment on this item, we'd like you to have a seat up
front.
MR. HAU: Good morning, Members of the Council. I'm sorry I was late this morning. I
had another meeting, this is regarding the beached whale. I guess, I sent some
written testimony previously and I guess I'd just like to reiterate. We'd been
working with the . . . turtle nesting situation and we've been getting turtles that
have been coming back to Maui. And I think in my last testimony, I think, what I
had written that for the turtles, basically, they're telling us where our somewhat
natural areas are still. Basically, these are the secluded areas and somewhat
darkened. But, what really surprised us last year in our turtle nesting season was
to have a green turtle come back and the green turtle came and nested right by
505 Front Street. This is right next to the shoreline access, basically, within
walking distance of that access and there were three nests right in that vicinity
but, again, that was in the darkened area. I think, the other concern not only for
turtle nesting, the other nesting areas have been Kealia also in Kihei, and we
also had a nest in 1996 in Makena, this is by, on Big Beach. So, the turtles are
kind of telling us where, if they do come back that they prefer to nest. Its also,
some other problems is our coastal ecosystem and, I guess, what I was also
trying to stress was that there are other places, I guess, on the shoreline areas.
If we'd like to see kupe‘e in the future or invertebrates that are affected by light,
it's not saying cut out all the lights. All I'm saying is that we're in this
development phase on this island, if we can be selective as to lights that are
shining out to the ocean or for people just to see surf breaks. You see hotels that
direct lights to the whole shoreline. But, what that may also be doing is, I mean,
repelling nesting, female turtles or things like the crabs or snails, not only kupe'e
but other invertebrates that are on the shoreline. They are adapted to this
darkness as well as seasons. I think growing up on Oahu, I remember by the
Board of Water Supply and that is their--now what's that?--their Christmas
flowers. I noticed they got rid of all the Christmas flowers because what
happened was the lighting that they had changed to there was no seasonality, so
the Christmas flowers wouldn't bloom on Oahu. It's, it's looking more at the
ecosystem and I just wanted to bring those things, to kind of call attention to it.
But, other than that, well, I guess, some of the other suggestions--I'm not
saying--but things like movement sensors, so things really don't need to be
lighted all the time for security purposes or backs of yards, things like that We
have also met with some of the Members of the Maui Hotel Association for
recommendations. We're not saying get rid of the lights but be able to have
some alternatives. You're gonna have the security, you're gonna have the
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visibility but . . . (CHANGE TAPE) . . . may repel some of the natural things that
may occur. So, thank you for your time.
CHAIR MOLINA: Members, any questions for Mr. Hau? Hearing none. Thank you
very much. Skippy, I have one quick question.
MR. HAU: Okay.
CHAIR MOLINA: In, in your opinion, the turtle population with the present light
standards, how much of an impact you think it's made on the turtle population, I
guess, in the negative?
MR. HAU: It's really hard to say. We've had at least one female turtle returning, we're
talking both Hawksbill for last year, this is the first Green. And I think when I
talked with Mr. Ed Lindsey, he was saying that the last time he saw a green turtle
nesting in Lahaina that was back in 1949. So, about 50 years ago from a green
turtle nesting on the beach there. So, eh, Ed sort of tells us there is some hope
but to estimate how many turtles are gonna be nesting, we really don't know.
We're still waiting for the turtles that we have tagged and we have put satellite
tags on. When those turtles return, we will know that they're returning for
another time to come back and nest but every year we've been getting different
turtles coming back. So, for now at least they haven't returned yet and we're
expecting maybe a three, four year cycle but the turtles haven't returned.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay.
MR. HAU: The ones that have nested.
CHAIR MOLINA: Alright. Thank you.
MR. HAU: Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Any other questions for Mr. Hau? If not, thank you very much. Okay,
Members, I'll open up the floor to a discussion on this issue. Mr. Carroll.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Yes, Mr. Goode, do we have any program now to
shield lights? Is there anything that we're doing along that line to shield existing
lights?
MR. GOODE: When, when you say "we."
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: The County. Streetlights ... for streetlights.
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MR. GOODE: For streetlights.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: I'm sorry, yeah, for the . . . anything that or any County
lighting that we have not just--any County lighting that the County is responsible
for. Do we have any program to shield the existing lights?
MR. GOODE: The only one I'm aware of is the, the rules I cited earlier, which relates to
new subdivisions. We do act upon requests from the community for existing
lights through our Street Lighting Committee folks that want it shielded and we
shield them upon request. But, as far as existing buildings that we are
responsible to maintain, operate, I'm not aware of any program.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Yeah, like this County building; for instance, if there
was a light that wasn't shielded . . . is there any, anything that has been
considered by your Department to put shielding on those lights?
,

MR. GOODE: I'm not aware of any.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Carroll. Mr. Arakawa.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Yeah, Dave, for the . . . existing lights that came in
prior to this ordinance, is there anything being done to shift those to shielded
lights?
MR. GOODE: We don't have an ongoing program where we've identified, we're gonna
do so many lights per year or have the money to do that. We're acting upon
request at this time.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: So, even with the Maui Electric contract that we have,
have we tried to amend the, the contract in any way to work with fully shielded
lights?
MR. GOODE: Are you talking about the contract to replace bulbs that burn out?
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: The streetlights, yeah.
MR. GOODE: That's the only one I'm aware of that we have.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: But there are no-MR. GOODE: Unless Corp. Counsel is . . .
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COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Actually, there, there . .
MR. FUKUSHIMA: If I may, Mr. Chairman? We did have a, like I said, three or four
years ago or five years ago, there was a retrofit agreement that we had with Maui
Electric where they agreed to retrofit all mercury vapors with HPS lights. I think
that was accomplished in a couple of years and that they were, they, they
finished it well ahead of schedule. As far as shielding, I'm not sure and, and it
might be very helpful to have a representative from Maui Electric here at, at one
of your meetings. But I believe in, in, in areas where shielding is, is requested,
they don't use shielding anymore but they use flat lights instead of the, the bulbs
that diffuse lights a little bit more. I know that they installed one of those in front
of my house when I, when I requested it.
-

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: It serves almost the same purpose?
MR. FUKUSHIMA: Yeah, it serves the same purpose. It directs the light down rather
than to the sides and up.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: In, in, if I may? One, one more question on this item.
CHAIR MOLINA: Proceed.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: I've noticed that the lights flicker on and off. Is that a
component of the sodium lights? I've noticed a lot of the lights just for some
reason they flicker and then later on they come back on. I've noticed that in front
of my house specifically and I've noticed that in a lot of other areas, is that a
principle of sodium lights?
MR. GOODE: Yeah, I don't know if that's the component of the bulb, that particular type
of bulb or it's just a sign of the bulbs going out. I know there's one near our
house for a while it seems like every time we drove by it, it went off.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Yeah, I've been noticing it a lot-MR. GOODE: I don't know.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: --and I'm wondering if it's the characteristic of the
sodium light that needs to be explored. Because, you know, if we're looking at it
for lighting for a specific reason, if it's off it's not doing what it's supposed to be
doing. But, the same bulb will come back on, so it's not like it's gonna burn out,
it's burning out, it will do that for weeks and weeks as far as I've seen it.
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CHAIR MOLINA: That might be a question that's appropriate for a representative from
Maui Electric, too.
MR. GOODE: Okay, I'll give 'em a call.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Members, any other comments on this issue before the Chair
gives his recommendation?
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR MOLINA: Mr. Kane.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: And I'm sorry if I wasn't paying attention to this, so I'll ask this
question. Mr. Goode, did you folks review the proposed ordinance that was
forwarded to us from Mr. Maberry or Maberry? Was there any specific review of
that ordinance or maybe Corp. Counsel can answer that question? And have
any comments been provided regarding the, the, the request for us to consider
and I'm referring to, I guess, a couple of requests back in May 9 of 2000. It was
forwarded to then Chair Mike Davis from Council Chair Kawano regarding the
proposed ordinance and I think I, I also forwarded that back on August 8 of 2000.
Have, have we ever moved forward on that and did any type of ... I see a
request, if possible please transmit the proposed bill approved as to form and
legality. And again, I'm sorry if I wasn't paying attention.
MR. GOODE: Mr. Chair, in looking through the binder I noticed that the, like the letter
and outline of a bill by Mr. Maberry had been sent to the Police Department, had
been sent to the Prosecuting Attorney. And I, and I was going through the binder
and I noticed, I didn't see one that went to us at Public Works and I don't recall
us responding directly. But, we did send, you know, the matter to the Subdivision
Engineering Standards Committee, which is something that had come up in the
previous term. You know, we had to, of course, schedule that and write a
response back but as far as the specific bill, I don't recall reviewing it. And
perhaps we should because it does make references to the building official and it
does talk about plans, so certainly there would be an impact . . . of responsibility
on our Department.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Thank you. And Corporation Counsel, did you folks get
something forwarded to you folks for form and legality?
MR. FUKUSHIMA: If I may, Mr. Chairman? I see something in the binder, I see a
communication to our office. Unfortunately, I haven't seen it until today but when
I, when I did a quick review of it, it looks like a very good starting off point.
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VICE-CHAIR KANE: Mis...thank you. Mis...Mr. Chair. So, is it possible to have this
forwarded over to Public Works for review and then we can perhaps use this as a
vehicle for our . . . you know, for direction for us to move forward with this item?
CHAIR MOLINA: We could consider that.
MS. INOUYE-OGATA: Excuse me, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR MOLINA: Yes.
MS. INOUYE-OGATA: May I say something? I see here the letter dated
August 17 th , 2000, to James Takayesu, Corporation Counsel requesting that they
review the proposed draft and bill as to form and legality. I also see another
memo dated August 29 th , 2000, to Mike Davis, who at that time was the Chair of
Public Works and Water Committee, from Howard Fukushima. And as stated in
this memo it says, this is in refer...reference to the aforementioned matter being
the outdoor lighting, we have referred the request to the Land Use and Codes
Administration of the Public Works and Waste Management for their comments.
We believe that this proposal may be best implemented by placing it in the
Electrical Code. And it goes on to say, since the Electrical Code is administered
by LUCA we feel it would, it's best to acquire their input.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, Members, did you get, get that letter in your binder? Have you
found it?
VICE-CHAIR KANE: So, Mr. Chairman. So, Mr. Fukushima, it comes back to you now.
So . . .
MR. FUKUSHIMA: I remember now. If I may, Mr. Chair?
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Mr. Fukushima, proceed.
MR. FUKUSHIMA: I thought I got it off my desk when I referred it to Land Use and
Codes and I haven't received a response back from them yet regarding this and
the incorporation in the Electrical Code. And I thank you, Ms. Ogata, for
refreshing my recollection on this matter.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR MOLINA: Mr. Kane.
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VICE-CHAIR KANE: Thank you. So, Mr. Fukushima, you make a comment in, in that
memorandum that you believe this proposal maybe best implemented by placing
it in the Electrical Code. Do you need some time to explain to us what helped
you arrive at that conclusion?
MR. FUKUSHIMA: This, this was, if I recall correctly, this was in discussions with the
Land Use and Codes Administrator, Mr. Ralph Nagamine. And it was at his
suggestion that . . . we consider placing it in the Electrical Code rather than in the
other section of, of the code.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you. And, Mr. Chair, so we'll be following up on
those requests?
CHAIR MOLINA: Yes, sir.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Members, any other questions? Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah. Thank you, Mr. Chair. I think this issue is a real
serious one that we need to, to really address and not just shove it off to
somebody else to solve the problem. From time to time through the terms, we
have heard complaints regarding rural lighting versus urban lighting and the
number of lights or the proliferation of lights even in the urban area. You know,
I'm not so concerned about the type of light bulb because technology can
change, you know, overnight as to what kind of light bulb it is, but I think it's the
impact of the lights that we have to look at. What the output is, not necessarily if
it's low pressure or high pressure and I know that's being referred to because
that's the, you know, the standard bulbs that are available now. I would also like
to see more attention paid to using solar lighting in neighborhoods. And, you
know, I think we can accomplish what needs to be accomplished as far as the
police go with having lighting but they don't need 360 degrees lighting. They're
not usually shooting things down out of the sky, that's for somebody else to do,
Star Wars people, Mr. Maberry, perhaps. But I think it's, its concentrating the
lighting where it needs to be and not wasting light, I guess. So, you know, I see
us working on this a little bit more Perhaps, I missed it in the binder but I didn't
see anything from Dark Skies. Is, is there a recommendation or something in
the . .
CHAIR MOLINA: We, we did just receive some additional information regarding
Dark Skies. Jan, if you'd like to comment on that?
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MS. INOUYE-OGATA: Material was put into your, placed in your binders yesterday.
We have something that I pulled off from the Internet website and it's entitled,
Efficient Outdoor Lighting. It just, you know, basically gives you a rev...review of
all of the different type of, types of lighting, and kind of compares like the wattage
and the output. There's a wealth of information, so I could easily pull up more.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. Yeah, I'm sorry, I picked up my binder Monday,
so if there's something that got added on yesterday, I didn't pick it up yet. So, I
apologize for that. But, I think that that association or organization has, you
know, a wealth of information on research regarding different types of lighting
and the impacts of lighting. So, I would hope that they are an integral of what we
do with our lighting standards. And, you know, so I don't, I don't know what your
recommendation is, but I hope it's not to pass anything today. We need to, I
think, look at this more closely and really pay the kind of attention to it that we
need. And I don't know where we are with developing rural standards for lighting
versus urban standards, I'm not sure if, if David can address that. Do we have a
different standard right now?
MR. GOODE: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Oh, you do. Okay.
CHAIR MOLINA: Mr. Goode.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: And, and I also noticed that, I don't know if it was my
imagination but I thought I saw shields--I mean, not I thought--I did see shields
on those lights on, on the Kula Highway and I think they're recent. But, you
know, I could have been daydreaming before driving down there and not noticing
the lights but I did notice that they are shielded and when, I think, when they first
went up they weren't. So, I see an attempt made to do some of that shielding
and I think that's probably what we need to do more of to address the needs, I
think, of the Police Department especially and for the neighbors. And, the
neighborhoods who feel that lighting gives them security, to, to look more at
those lights that focus downward and not outward. And I, I can share with you
one, one little story about park lighting which seems to be the big . . . perpetrator
of light pollution. When we were doing the, the lighting for War Memorial
Stadium, the football stadium, we had a Sports Lighting Specialist come in from
Colorado, I think, he was from Colorado--no he wasn't from Colorado—lowa.
Anyway, wherever he was from, come in and take a look at our lighting and what
we were, what we were using throughout the County and he went particularly to
Kalama Park at night. And he was amazed that that kind of lighting was allowed
to go in at that park because he said it would seem like somebody was having a
sale or wanted to get rid of a whole bunch of this type of light. And so, they just
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stuck it into Kalama Park as the, as the lights for Kalama Park and I think that
probably is the brightest bunch of lights in the State. But in, even in sports
lighting they're, they're becoming more and more conscious of, of lighting
pollution. And there are standards now for even sports lighting to get you the
desired level of foot-candles on the floor, as what, how they refer to it or on the
field, to be able to have a certain level of competition. And, you know, believe it
or not, there are levels of lighting that go according to the level of sport, if it's a
recreation sport, it's a certain lighting; if it's a professional sport, it's a different
lighting standard. So, there are lighting standards even in, in sports lighting. So,
I think bringing all these folks together with the recommendations can help us to,
to frame a lighting standard for Maui County that will address, I think, a whole lot
of, of needs and concerns. So, I thank you, Mr. Chair, for bringing this forward
and I, I look forward to a lot more discussions on this. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Charmaine. Members, any other questions? Mr. Kane.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Just a curiosity as far as the Kalama Park issue. Was that
corrected? Was there any corrective measures taken?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: No.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: No. So, it's a ongoing situation?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: The other one is . . to the, another thing that I saw recently was, I
guess, the driving range, Maui Lani driving range, and those lights shining up
onto West Maui mountains. I mean, are there any types of standards that are
applied to that, that particular facility? I mean, because . . . seems like more
than, more than it's share of light is being blasted up onto the whole West Maui
mountain, I mean, as far as towards Wailuku from Kahului. So, I don't know if
that's something that we don't have anything in place to, we have nothing to
regulate that.
CHAIR MOLINA: Mr. Goode, your comments.
MR. GOODE: I'm not aware of anything in our codes that would regulate that activity.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Yeah. And then, Mr. Chair, just a final comment is . . . I heard
Mr. Hau speak about communicating with the hotels and so, I see Ms. Vencl in
the audience. So, I was wondering if she could share with us what, what efforts
the hotels are making to, to reduce the amount of lighting that's going, as far as a
permanent, on a permanent basis shining out into the water. And kind of
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respond to the issue that Mr. Hau brought forward because I'd be real interested
to hear what efforts are being taken by the, the various hotels.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, your request is taken under consideration.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Ms. Vend, if you'd like to either be at the podium or up here at the
front for your comments on this issue.
MS. VENCL: This is pretty comfortable. Thank you. Aloha, Mr. Chairman and
Committee Members. Yes, actually the, Skippy and Mike Maberry and
Hannah Bernard came to visit with our engineers group immediately after a
meeting that was held here, I believe, by Mike Davis at that point and time,
addressing issues about turtle nesting and lighting. They shared with us their
viewpoints, they shared a lot of educational information regarding the nesting of
turtles and how we could help and be aware of that kind of an issue. And the
engineers agreed to go back and take a look at what it is they have. Understand
though, that in, if it's redirecting a light that's not a difficult thing to do. If it is
replacement of light, that has to be worked into budget, so it's not something that
can happen overnight but they are aware. Quite frankly, I have not asked them
about that issue since that meeting which was probably four maybe five months
ago. We have a meeting coming up in May and I'll be happy to ask about a
report, if you will, at that time and what they've done and where they've looked,
et cetera.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Terry'. Members, any questions? Mr. Kane.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Chair. How about shielding of lights, is that
something that was also discussed and taken into consideration for adjustments?
MS. VENCL: You know, at that same meeting we also had a Maui Electric
representative there and there was some discussion from that representative
about the issue of shielding might not be the route to go for our properties. And
they, again, were going to look for MECO for some sort of a, of a direction with
maybe newer technology and different things that they could do. I will get a
better report for you though and I'll turn it into this Chairman, how's that?
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Thank you. So, I guess, I would follow up with asking this, Chair,
if you can ask staff to maybe get a written letter over to Ms. Vencl so she has
something in writing and we can get a response.
MS. VENCL: Sure.
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VICE-CHAIR KANE: Thank you very much.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Kane. Mr. Arakawa.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Terryl, as a member of the Committee, your
recommendation was to go to low pressure. In your discussions considering
what the Police Department is saying as far as high-pressure fixtures, why did
you come out with the recommendation for low pressure?
MS. VENCL: Who came out with the recommendation for low pressure?
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: I thought the Standards Committee came out with a
low-pressure requirement . . . recommendation.
MS. VENCL: Oh, I don't, I don't know. I don't know if I'm on that. I don't think I am.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Okay.
MS. VENCL: But if it's a while back, it could be. I don't, I don't know that answer. I can
tell you that one of the concerns of the property is, is safety and is the, the
walkways, the boardwalks or whatever they're called in front of the properties.
Making sure that there is sufficient light there, that people feel safe to walk there
and so, there is some safety and liabilities issues that that they're concerned
with. But I didn't, I was not of the opinion that they didn't feel that there was
something that could be done to address both safety and cutting down some of
the intrusive light.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Members, any other questions? If not, thank you, Terryl.
MS. VENCL: You're welcome.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. If there's no other discussion, the Chair will make his
recommendation at this point. Obviously, this is a more in-depth issue then
originally thought and there's a lot of issues that have not been able to, we were
not able--try to get myself together here. Items that had questions that were not
answered here today such as costs and which also included an opinion from the
Electric Company. This is something the Chair should have thought out also, to
get a representative from Maui Electric to give their thoughts on this. Aside from
the impacts, the present lighting standards have on our wildlife, the Chair at this
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point, if there are no objections, recommend deferral of this item for further
research and to be brought up for discussion at a later date.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: No objections.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: No objections.
COUNCILMEMBER KAWANO: No objections.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Alright. Thank you very much, Members.

ACTION: DEFER pending further discussion
CHAIR MOLINA: The Chair will call for a five-minute recess. ... (gavel) .. .

RECESS: 10:11 a.m.
RECONVENE: 10:17 a.m.
ITEM NO. 40: RE: PROPOSED RESOLUTION URGING MAUI HOTELS TO
PROVIDE BEACH ACCESSIBILITY SERVICES C.C. 01-115)
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, Members, the Public Works and Trans...Transportation
meeting for May 2 nd is now reconvened. Our next item on the agenda is
Item No. 40, which relates to a proposed resolutioi entitled, urging Maui hotels to
provide beach accessibility services. The purpose of the proposed resolution is
to urge hotels on the island of Maui to establish beach accessibility programs by
providing the use of all-terrain wheelchairs and assistance for persons with
disabilities and for the elderly. The Chair has invited representatives from the
Managing Director's office and representatives from the Maui Hotel Association
and the Maui Visitors Bureau to join us. This resolution was introduced by
Councilmember Bob Carroll, who's also a Committee Member. Mr. Carroll, the
floor is yours for comments.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you. I've introduced this resolution which is a
resolution. It's not to force anyone to do anything, it's to bring attention to the
fact that tech...technology is available and is being used in other places for the
benefit of the hotels and the guest that they bring in and that they want to attract.
Some of the hotels in different places actually use this in their brochures. It's not
just for people like me in a wheelchair, there are many elderly people that have a
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hard time crossing the beach. And they have these customs chairs that they
purchase or they have contracted, people make them, but you can buy them on
the market now. That are, very easily they can cross the sand and they have to
be pushed by someone and it can either be rented or they have to where the
beach attendants push the person down to the water. There are several different
ways they can do it and structure it according to their staffing or insurance or
what other restrictions they might have. I would hope that with this resolution, it
would be endorsed by all my fellow Council Members. And after that, I had
planned to go and see each individual hotel myself, on my own, and speak to
them; the managers, the general managers. And try to encourage them to
purchase this type of chair and have some type of program to where they can
service these individuals that would really like to go and come to Hawaii and be
able to go to the water, into the ocean. I think, it's something that's good for the
hotels, it's good for the people that come over here, I think, it will make Maui a
more attractive place. I think, it shows the hotels that do implement this, and I'm
sure some will, that Maui really cares about all the people that come over here,
the elderly and those that are not fortunate enough to be physically fit enough to
be able to walk into the water by themselves. And I would stress again, that this
resolution in no way binds the hotel or the County or any individual or company
or corporation to do this It's strictly a voluntary thing. It's something that I feel is
good for everyone and that I would like to promote. It's been mentioned that the
County could possibly do something like this but I don't want to approach that
now, later on perhaps with Jo-Anne Johnson through Parks we might adjust that
later. But I'd like to try to get our hotels to start a voluntary program and
implement this as soon as possible. And again, I would hope that all the
Members would support me with this resolution. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Carroll. Mr. Arakawa.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Yes, Mr. Chairman. Because it's voluntary at this
point, I could very strongly support it. As a Council representative to the
association, on the Executive Board, I'd also be willing to take this to the
Executive Board of the Hotel Association when we have our first meeting and
provide them a copy of this.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Arakawa. Members, any other comments,
discussion?
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR MOLINA: Mr. Kane.
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VICE-CHAIR KANE: At this point, I would just ask that the initiator of this resolution
make the motion to adopt it.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. Mr. Carroll.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Move that this resolution be adopted.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Second.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. It's been moved by Mr. Carroll, seconded by Mr. Kane.
Members, discussion? Mr. Arakawa.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: You have representatives from the organization here.
Did you want to have their opinion made known before we actually pass this?
CHAIR MOLINA: Sure. I, I just for the record, I did speak with the representative from
the Hotel Association and she did say she didn't have much to say. But, if there
are no objections from the Members?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: No objections.
COUNCILMEMBER KAWANO: No objections.
CHAIR MOLINA: Terry!, the mike.
MS. VENCL: Aloha, again. Terryl Vend, Maui Hotel Association. I thank Jan for
getting me a copy of this ahead of time so that I could at least begin to try to
understand what was being presented today. Let me say first, that the
Visitor's Bureau is not here today because this is the type of item generally
handled in my Association. In addition to that, Marsha happens to be off island,
she's on Lanai today. So, that's the first thing. I would like to say to Mr. Carroll
that I certainly appreciate the intent of this. I have basically brought up the issue
to my Board of Directors because I knew this was coming down the pike and Jan
was kind enough to let me take a look at it. This is an individual property kind of
decision as opposed to an association kind of policy thing. That's the first thing
I'd like to say. Second thing is I will be happy to send a copy of this resolution to
all of my membership and understand that in that membership are large
properties with large spaces on, on beachfronts, small guys with condos. And
so, they all have different ways of doing business and this type of thing, how this
might be handled on their property. I will be happy to forward this resolution to all
of them. And I would like to say, that I'd be happy to forward a roster of my
membership to Mr. Carroll as he goes out and meets with these folks. You'll
have the name and appropriate information about the general manager to go out
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and, and, and forward this particular thing. Finally then, I do have, again, an
engineers meeting coming up in May and this will be on their agenda as well
because I suspect that if someone goes to the property and speaks with them,
they will want somebody like an engineer or possibly a security kind person. I, I
don't know exactly who all, and what kind of property might want to; you might
want to attend that meeting. So, I'd be happy to make those efforts on behalf of
the association.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, Terryl. Members-COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you very much.
CHAIR MOLINA: Members, any other questions for Ms. Vend? Mr. Kawano.
COUNCILMEMBER KAWANO: Thank you. Good morning, Chairman. Good morning,
my dear lady.
MS. VENCL: Good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER KAWANO: Do you folks today have anything like what Bob is
talking about as far as wheelchair people going to the beach, to the water?
Helping them?
MS. VENCL: I don't know the answer to that. At the, the folks who were at the Board
meeting did not, but I don't know if that's across the board in my membership. I
only had probably four people, five people at the Board.
COUNCILMEMBER KAWANO: Okay. And thank you for coming.
MS. VENCL: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER KAWANO: Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Kawano. Any other questions for Ms. Vend? Okay.
Thank you, Terryl, you are simply amazing, you can think on your feet so fast.
During the break, you told me you didn't have much to say and look at what
you've done. Terrific.
MS. VENCL: Yeah, I can always talk.
ALL: . . . (Laughter) . . .
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CHAIR MOLINA: Members, for informational purposes, our Analyst Jan has, I guess,
several hotels on Oahu that currently have some type of beach accessibility
services. If you'd like to go ahead and mention those for us.
MS. INOUYE-OGATA: Well, as indicated in the resolution, Kona Village Resort and
Mauna Lani Bay Hotel and Bungalows on the Island of Hawaii as well as the
Outrigger Hotels on the Island of Oahu, already currently provide this kind of
service using the all-terrain wheelchairs.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you very much. Okay. The, if there is no other
discussion, the motion before you is to recommend the adoption of the proposed
resolution and the filing of the communication. Okay, we have a question
from--oh, by the way--I did not welcome her officially, we have
Councilmember Johnson here to offer her comments.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I, I just wanted to let the other Members know that I
did visit with members who had past experience with these wheelchairs. And it's
my understanding, anyway that the issue of liability for the County, and I'm
speaking only about the County not about the hotels, but the issue of beach
liabilities was one of the reasons it did not go forward. Because of the fact, that
at many of our State beaches and the places where these were going to be, that
there was always this issue of liability. So, I have some correspondence on it
and I did visit with people who are from the disabled community and they had
indicated also that this was one of the stumbling blocks. So, unfortunately, we
didn't get relief at the State this year, so I'll be willing to explore any possibility
though where we could do this. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you for your efforts, much appreciated by the Committee. Any
other questions before we take a vote on the motion? Okay. Hearing none. All
in favor of the recommend...the recommendation of the proposed resolution say
"aye."
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Aye.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Aye.
COUNCILMEMBER KAWANO: Aye.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Aye.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Aye.
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CHAIR MOLINA: An those opposed? Okay. Thank you. The Chair for the record will
mark it a unanimous vote from the Committee, six to none. Thank you.

VOTE:

AYES: Councilmembers Arakawa, Carroll, Kawano and Tavares,
Vice-Chair Kane and Chair Molina.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Councilmember Hokama

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: ADOPTION of resolution, as revised, and FILING of
communication
ITEM NO. 19: RE: PROPOSED BILL AMENDING CERTAIN SECTIONS OF TITLE
10 OF THE MAUI COUNTY CODE PERTAINING TO VEHICLES AND TRAFFIC
(C.C. 01-95)
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, our next item on our agenda is Item No. 19 relating to a
proposed bill entitled, a bill for an ordinance amending certain sections of Title 10
of the Maui County Code pertaining to vehicles and traffic. The purpose of the
proposed bill is to remove references to Noeau Street, the driveway that services
lao Intermediate School from the Maui County Code, as well as to provide some
housekeeping revisions. The Chair has invited the Director of Public Works and
Waste Management and a representative from lao Intermediate School. And first
of all, we'd like to get the comments of Mr. Goode on this issue.
MR. GOODE: Thank you, Chairman. There's a ... two parts to the proposed bill. The
first part is to recognize the fact that lao School has gone through an extensive
master plan process and has initiated design of the first phase of the
improvements to the school. And part of those design in improvements, they had
to get two variances from the Board of Variances and Appeals. And during those
meetings there was concerns that were raised by some of the surrounding
neighborhood businesses as it relates to the distribution of traffic within the
facility. All along, the lao School had planned to close Noeau Street. And as
point of reference, if you're not sure exactly where Noeau Street it's immediately
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above the ditch entering into the school and you circulate off of Kaohu Street,
you go down Noeau and you'd make a left on Kaua Street and work your way
back up to Market Street. So, anyway, these issues were resolved during the
Board and Variances and Appeals meetings. Our Department got rather actively
involved primarily through the efforts of our Highways Division Chief Brian Oshiro
who not only lives in the neighborhood but works in the neighborhood and helped
to resolve a lot of these concerns. But now, we're at the point where the, the
DOE and DAGS and their consultants, want to initiate closure of Noeau Street so
they can begin these improvements. And as the testifier previously mentioned,
we're about ready to bid. And we were all set to do that until I did a little code
search and found that the word Noeau appears three times in our Maui County
Code. So, those three times include references as a one-way street, references
to a loading zone and references to crosswalks. So, I asked Corporation
Counsel to make appropriate amendments to either remove or amend as
appropriate references to Noeau Street. It was also interesting to note, the
Committee should know this, that if you look at a tax map of this area, Noeau
Street is not shown, and that's why I wrote on my communication to you, is a
driveway. But, if you go to our surveyor and ask him about Noeau Street he
says, yeah, it's a street and our codebook calls it a street but it's not on the tax
map. What is on the tax map are the two parcels that make up the school. One
is a State owned parcel where the armory is and the other parcel's County
owned. And that's where the street or the driveway or whatever you want to call
it is So, it's kind of a strange situation, it's a street and it's not a street. So, we
thought the best thing to do is let's clear it up once and for all, bring it in front of
you folks, that's part one Part two, was since we have been in the process of
trying to clean up these ordinances in Title 10 relating to parking, stopping, all
these other stuff. We have before you a, a number of household cleaning items
relating to removal of references, removing of references to any ordinance that
talks about State highways. We tried to clean up portions as it relates to trying to
reference say to businesses that don't, no longer exist or other references to
locations that may be inaccurate or not as accurate as they, could be And
maybe what, if, if we could do, Chair, maybe take specific questions as it relates
to Noeau and then, I think, it would probably be appropriate that at least to go
through the other household changes so we get it on the record. But, they are
kind of two separate things.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Goode. Questions for Mr. Goode?
Mr. Arakawa.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Dave, Noeau Street, if the school is gonna be
expanded to both the lots, wouldn't it be more appropriate for the County just to
turn the street over to the State so that they can work that entire area rather than
have a County jurisdiction in the middle of it? Is that something that we can do?
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MR. GOODE: Yeah, the Administration, and specifically the Mayor has been working
with the State to look at, is there a possibility of doing some swaps here and
there. As you know there's a lot of school property that's on County, its County
property that house our public school and this is the case. But, because there's
no road lot, it's a large lot, it's a few acres, that includes this driveway, that's
where the existing school is. You know, the Mayor's been looking at trying to get
some trades and we just haven't really gotten an effective response back. So, at
this point, the Administration, the State, either DOE or DAGS is at least content
with the relationship as it is now.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Mr. Arakawa, anything further?
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Yeah. No, it, it just seemed that, to me, that if they
were gonna be controlling it, I'm not sure what the liability of the County is and
the responsibility of the County is in this area because of the fact that we own the
property. If the State is gonna be absorbing all of that that's fine; the
responsibility of the roadway in between. You know, if the State wanted to take
the roadway out and do something else there for part of their campus expansion
projects, in my mind, it would be appropriate as well But I'm willing to go along
with the . . . the position right now if the State wanted to leave it as is, that's fine
we just close the street. But, I really think that you need to explore turning over
the entire jurisdiction over to the State, they've turned their entire responsibilities
over to the County at times, so in this particular case we'll just be reversing that
trend. Government is government as far as I'm concerned, it's the pub...the
public's property, and which jurisdiction has it, in my mind, doesn't make a whole
lot of difference.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Arakawa. Members, any other questions for
Mr. Goode? Mr. Kane.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Mr. Goode, maintenance issues, now that we're gonna be closing
that road and deleting the reference to the street. So, when it comes time to
consider paving the road or resurfacing the road or anything like that what, what
issues are at hand, when it gets to that point?
MR. GOODE: Well, when they're finished with their work the road won't exist, there
won't be a road. It will be part of the, part of the campus. If I recall correctly, it
has some green areas, some walkways, trees. It's gone.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Mr. Kawano.
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COUNCILMEMBER KAWANO: Thank you, Chairman. David, what about security?
What about safety? What about . . . that kind of service?
MR. GOODE: For the school, you mean? Safety for the kids?
COUNCILMEMBER KAWANO: Yeah. No, you close the road, what, what, what would
this, would this have any impact as far as that goes?
MR. GOODE: We don't see any. The only potential, which we think has been
overcome, there are three homes on Kaua Street, and they're well aware of the,
the improvements that are contemplated, and they still have access off Market
Street. But, the school feels that it's a lot safer for the kids because you don't
have vehicles going right through the middle of campus and we've got adequate,
two drop points, like buses on Kaohu Street and from parents on Market Street.
COUNCILMEMBER KAWANO: But, as far as you, you don't see any, any impact as far
as closing it and . . . safety, safety re...I'm looking at?
MR. GOODE: No. And financially, it's just, you know, a few hundred feet less of road
to maintain.
COUNCILMEMBER KAWANO: Thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Before we go to Councilmember Tavares, I'd like to call upon
the representative from lao School, Vice-Principal Cathy Kilborn to maybe give
comments on the question that was made by Mr. Kawano. If you'd like to come
up and have a seat here in front of us. I think these are good questions that are
being brought up here today in regards to this item. Mr. Kawano, can you go
ahead and repeat your question for Ms. Kilborn sake.
COUNCILMEMBER KAWANO: I was just looking at the safety, you know, like if you
close the road what kind of impact that would have?
MS. KILBORN: Really, the impact is one of convenience rather than safety. If you
close the road it becomes what, the traffic off Kaohu Street now cannot go
through the middle of the school. With regards to safety, it's actually a safety
hazard to have the road open and the students cross the street daily, back and
forth between classes. The public is accustomed to using that road, therefore,
they drive through it as a short cut. They believe because we have a public
telephone on our campus and it's close to the public road that they can stop
therefore we have lots of trespassing occurring during the day. Recently, we had
portables built on our campus and because the roadway exists and we are
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unable to gate the road, the construction company that was building our
portables suffered a loss of over $50,000 of tools. People simply drove onto the
campus and removed the tools. So, actually having it open is more of a safety
hazard, in addition to vagrancy that occurs. We're close to the homeless shelter
as you are well aware and many people like to sleep on our campus because it's
dark, et cetera. So, I, I think it's really more of a problem to keep it open. We
have, have a concern for the residents who are on one side of Noeau Street and
we have had considerable conversations with them. And we have agreed that
even though the street might be closed, they currently park, most of the residents
park on our property. And we are, in our conversations with them have made
provision for them to continue to use parking even once the constructions
completed and the project is done. And the residents appear to be satisfied with
that arrangement.
COUNCILMEMBER KAWANO: Thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Kawano. Charmaine.
'COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah, my question was as soon as this is passed they
will have the ability to gate, gate the road?
MS. KILBORN: That is correct. We did have gates installed and we did this because
last year we had a rash of bomb threats. We had about seven or eight in a row,
to the point where we had the FBI involved and we had trouble stopping traffic
coming into that area, so we put in gates. So, the only time we use the gates
now is when we're currently either drilling or we have a bomb threat to prevent
traffic from coming on campus.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Ms. Tavares. Members, any other questions?
Mr. Arakawa.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Uh . . . from, from the traffic standpoint, Dave, almost
every school if you have a drop off point for the kids in the morning and in the
afternoon, pickup of the kids. You see the traffic backing up because the parents
actually have to stop, take the time for the kids to get onto the cars and move off.
If that is taken off of Noeau Street and put on--what's that street with the tennis
courts?
MS. KILBORN: Kaohu Street?
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: No, the other one.
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MS. KILBORN: Kaua Street?
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: No.
MS. KILBORN: Market Street?
How is that gonna affect
Market Street.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA:
Market Street's traffic pattern? 'Cause, you know, that's, that's a very short area.
If, if the cars are trying to, to get in there, I assume only one side of the road is
gonna have parking or the ability to pickup. Is that not gonna block up that entire
intersection?
MR. GOODE: Part of the . . . the plans before they were revised had drop-offs of buses
and kids along Market Street but it's not along the present curb. You actually
would go into the property fronting the armory building, there would be a drop off,
so it's like a long loop driveway. And we were, we were concerned that if you
had both buses and parents dropping off, it would spill out into that intersection of
Kaohu and Market and our concerns is also the concerns of the neighboring
businesses. We found a new plan that allowed us along Kaohu Street and still
get the parents to drop off, it's actually inside the property and not on
Market Street. So, we feel it's, it's gonna minimize it.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: So, at, at this point the Department feels that the
length of the driveway, the configuration of it, you're not gonna create a traffic
hazard in the intersection? 'Cause that, that's really what my concern is that
Market Street, people coming in to pick up their kids or to drop them off, backing
all the cars up and creating a traffic concern there.
MR. GOODE: We feel it's gonna minimize it, I mean, we're not sure. I mean, the same
conversation we had a month or so ago regarding traffic, I mean, if more kids use
the bus then it will minimize it as well, You, you never, you don't know, we're, we
think the way it's designed now, it will minimize it.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Was that, that was . . . (CHANGE TAPE) ..
CHAIR MOLINA: I'm sorry, Mr. Arakawa, we have a comment from the Corp. Counsel.

.

MR. FUKUSHIMA: Yeah, If I may, Mr. Chairman? I just wanted to remind
Committee Members that this is only a correction to the Code that Noeau Street
in essence doesn't exist. It is part of a larger parcel, it has not been subdivided
out as a separate roadway. So what, what in essence the request today is, is to
remove references from a--what can I say?--quasi-street or a pseudo-street that
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exist in the code now. And, and what we're doing is correcting that . . . the error
in the code.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. Mr. Arakawa.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Okay. Well, I can understand what you're saying but
at, at currently with the real, what's actually happening is parents are using that
street to be able to drop off kids and that has a distinct use in the traffic pattern.
Because of the distance and because you're taking cars off of the main highways
and that's why my question to the Director. Because if we do this and we close
off that street, which, I guess, in theory doesn't exist even though it's there,
because of an error in record keeping. If we're going to be creating a concern
then we need to be aware of it and try and rectify that concern before it becomes
a problem, that that's really where the direction of my questioning. If that does, if
that is taken care of, I have no problem with doing it. But, I don't want to be able
to say, okay, we're gonna close off this County street, we're gonna take it off of
everything that exists, if we're gonna create a major traffic problem in that area.
MS. KILBORN: If I might offer an opinion.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay.
MS. KILBORN: Currently, the drop-off points for the buses and public family traffic
occurs all on Noeau Street and some on Market Street. Those wishing to avoid
the congestion in the middle of campus will drive to the top of Market Street, drop
off their children, they'll walk through the armory grounds. The plan that is being
offered in the master plan appears to have more surface drop off than it currently
has now. With the buses all being off loaded on Kaohu Street, on the right side
of Kaohu Street, they simply merge right back into traffic. A large percentage of
our students, about 55 percent of our students, currently ride the bus and
therefore that is a better operation because now the parents pickup need not
compete with buses. Currently, when we have pickup, our street is very
dangerous. We have buses on one side; parents are trying to park and double
park, students who are trying to cross the street to get to their parents and it, it's
a mess. So, we have actually increased the surface level of drop off and pickup
and I think it will, as planned. Of course, it's not functioning so we can't currently
assess but it looks as though it will run better than it is now.
CHAIR MOLINA: Mr. Arakawa.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: That that's really my concern. The other concern is
that if someone has to stop, a parent bringing the child to, to school or a parent
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trying to access the school because their parent, their children are sick, have
adequate place to actually park and walk .. .
MS. KILBORN: Yeah, this will actually be done better. Health services will be offered in
the area of the Administration building, which is the current armory. There will be
more parking and there will be more direct access to the health rooms. It won't, it
will not pose a problem at all.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Okay. I, I-CHAIR MOLINA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: I'm willing to accept that assurance from both
directors and the school, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you very much, Mr. Arakawa. Members, any other
questions for either Corp. Counsel, the Public Works Director or Ms. Kilborn from
lao School?
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, Mr. Kane.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Yeah, Ms. Kilborn, you made a comment regarding or you
referenced the homeless shelter .. .
MS. KILBORN: Uh-huh.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: ... and what's going on at the school, I guess, off-hours and I, I, I
didn't get the connection.
MS. KILBORN: Well, what happens is . . . it's kind of an incidental thing and I cannot
say to you that I have scientific nor research to say it. However, in talking to
many of the people who once lived at the shelter, who may not be there because
they are not abiding by rules, et cetera or people who are in our community who
live on the street in Wailuku, sleep quite frequently below our armory. It is not
lighted there, it is free from traffic, it's quiet, et cetera, et cetera. In addition to the
fact that since we have all the housing that has sprung up around that area,
Kaohu Street has become a very congested area. It wasn't like that before. So,
you know, some of the congestion problems that we see are not really related to
the school itself but the fact that the, the community is burgeoning.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
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CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Kane. Okay, if there are no further questions
the Chair will entertain a motion to recommend a passage of the proposed bill
and the filing of the communication.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: So moved, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, moved by Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Wait, before we make the motion. I believe
Dave Goode was going to go through a lot of other things, other changes.
CHAIR MOLINA: Oh, I apologize. I apologize. Okay. Let me-VICE-CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
MS. KILBORN: Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, we shall throw out that ... Chair's recommendation at this
point and let Mr. Goode continue on with the rest of the bill. Thank you,
Ms. Kilborn.
MR. GOODE: I would like the Chair's recommendation nevertheless but . . . if you can
just bear with me, I think, it's just good that we get this on the record; there's a lot
of housekeeping measures. If I could direct you to Page 1 of the ordinance
where we talk about pertaining to one-way streets and what I'll do is try to
reference the old lettering system. First, . . . the first thing you notice is that it
removes, when you talk about Vineyard Street, this is actually a project we
completed a number of years ago where Vineyard's no longer a one-way
between Market and Church. So, we're gonna remove that. Going down to
letters, F, G and H, those all that make references to streets that are State
highways and we've been advised that we, we need to remove such references
from our code. Going down to old letter K at the very bottom, you see it mentions
Kaahumanu Avenue near the old Hymie Meyer Company, just . . . it just
shouldn't reference stores especially ones that don't exist. And so, we change
that to Kinipopo Street. Old lettering L, just to change the spelling from Koele to
Koeli. And old letter M, this is one of the references to Noeau Street and
because it will be closed, we don't need to have it referenced as a one-way
street. Okay, moving on We're still on Page 2. Let's see, now we're talking
about loading zones and we go to old Item No 3 and this is Noeau Street and
this one gets removed completely since we won't be loading and off loading and
that's it on loading. Okay, next one is crosswalks. So, now we're on Page 5 of
the draft bill and there's quite a few changes here. Starting in Wailuku district,
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old Item No. 1 is removed completely because it's a State highway. Items
No. 3, 4, and 5 are also removed because they're State highways. Item No. 8 is
also removed because it's State highway. Item No. 12 and 13 are removed for
State highways. Item, old Item No. 14 is redone because Wailuku Post Office
has been moved, so we have a more specific reference point. Item No. 15 is
removed because it's a State highway. Old Item No. 16, we insert the word
"south" in references to South Kihei Road and also to remove references to Suda
Store and Robair's Kihei, since one of those don't exist to a more specific
reference point. Old, old Item No. 17, again, South Kihei Road and remove
reference to an old Utility Pole number. Items No. 18, 19, 20, 21, 22, all insert
the word "south" for South Kihei Road and also to remove references to the
Kamaole Beach Club Condominium. Old Item No. 23, insert the word "west" in
front of makai to be a little more specific. Item No 27 is deleted because that
portion of Papohaku Park no longer fronts Lower Main Street. Item No. 20,
here's Noeau Street and removing the reference for the crosswalk. The
crosswalks stays but we're just making reference point, reference to
Waiale Road. And that, Committee Members, is the extent of our housekeeping
measures.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: So moved.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Second.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Second.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Alright. Members, any discussion? It's been moved by Kane
and seconded by Member Tavares. Any other discussion on this item? Hearing
none. All those in favor of the proposed bill and the filing of the communication
say "aye."
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Aye.
COUNCILMEMBER KAWANO: Aye.
CHAIR MOLINA: All those opposed? Okay. Thank you. The Chair will mark it
unanimous.
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VOTE:

AYES: Councilmembers Arakawa, Carroll, Kawano and Tavares,
Vice-Chair Kane and Chair Molina.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Councilmember Hokama

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: FIRST READING of proposed bill and FILING of
communication
ITEM NO. 41: RE: PROPOSED BILL AMENDING SECTION 16.26.106, UNIFORM
BUILDING CODE RELATING TO DESIGN REGISTRATIOIN (01-116)
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, Members, our last item for today is Item No. 41 which relates to
a proposed bill entitled, a bill for an ordinance amending Section 16.26.106, Maui
County Code pertaining to the Uniform Building Code and relating to design
registration. Purpose of the proposed bill is to add a new subsection to the
Uniform Building Code to enable the County to issue building permits based on
pre-approved housing plans. And again, I'd like to turn over the floor for this item
to Mr. Goode of Public Works.
MR. GOODE: Thank you, Chairman. The proposed bill in changing our building code
would allow . . . a particular design of a, a structure, basically a single family
dwelling unit to be registered with the Department. And by registering it, this
single family structure would essentially be approved, assuming it meets all
applicable codes, be approved by the Department in almost any location it could
be put in. And the reason I say almost any is because we would register it, we'd
say, okay, register Design No. 1 is approved. So, if Design No. 1 comes in other
lots, we would no longer have to review the plan other than to look for setbacks
and height requirements. We still gotta check that because different districts
have different setbacks and heights. So, the, the review time would be just the
one time and a very small cursory amount of review on our part at subsequent
times. Presently, we have a, a, a system that's close to this for some of the
subdivisions like Maui Lani, Kehalani, Wailuku Parkside, some of the Kihei
subdivisions. They're gonna do a hundred homes and they're gonna have four
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or five models. They'll come in and we'll approve one plan. We'll basically put it
in a folder but they still gotta submit their usual plans for another home. But it's,
our, our review time is reduced because the guys know they've already seen it
and they basically okay it; check for setbacks and heights. But, they still are
paying the plan review fee every time. So, presently when you come in with a
set of plans, you pay the building permit fee and the plan review fee. Building
permit fee covers all our inspectors and everybody else going out. The plan
review is for reviewing plans. Well, if you've already reviewed it, you shouldn't
have to pay that fee all the time. And that's what, that's the other major aspect of
this ordinance is to formalize the process and to waive that plan review fee for,
after it's already been registered. The plan review fee is 25 percent of the
building permit fee. So, for a typical single family you're looking
at . . . somewhere around $1,200 total, building and plan review. And once it's
been registered that $1,200 would be reduced to about 1,000 or 900 somewhere
in that neighborhood, depending on the size of the building.
CHAIR MOLINA: Members, any question for Mr. Goode? Mr. Kane.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: I'll yield to Ms. Tavares.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah, thank you. In, in light of what you're saying
about waiving the fees, you're still going to have some degree of review because
of the height and the setbacks.
MR. GOODE: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: And if that be the case, if we're gonna pass this
ordinance, we probably should change something in our budget, in the
Appendix B regarding rates and fees. And maybe you could come up with a
suggestion for this type. I mean, I don't, I don't see a problem with this passing
actually, I think, it's a good idea, not have this redundancy for, you know, model
plan that's already approved. Perhaps, you can think about that, about what,
what amount of time it might be and maybe for those we just have a smaller fee.
You know if, if to me it's like you can waive the fee but then you're still having
some amount of review. And if we're basing our other fees on the amount of
time that personnel is taking to review those plans or whatever, that we should
have something in there for this. Be it a small amount based on maybe your
recommendation on how much time versus a full-blown plan somebody would be
looking at And we'd probably have to do that by . . . at first reading, if you can
get something to the Chair of the Budget Committee perhaps or to Mr. Molina
and he can forward it to Mr. Hokama at the Budget Committee. Yeah, that that
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would be my concern. I don't know if, I think, I was reading Mr. Kane's mind. He
might ask the same question, too.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Mr. Kane, any questions?
VICE-CHAIR KANE: No, it's the same question.
CHAIR MOLINA: Mr. Arakawa.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Yeah, I agree with Charmaine, I think, the, that's
something we need to do. I have little bit of a technical question on Page 2.
You, you crossed out a lot of stuff here and my, my copy of it, the crossed out
section is very, very light and I can't tell what is illuminated and what is not. What
is, what is the .
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: It's not supposed to be crossed out.
CHAIR MOLINA: Mr. Arakawa, you talking about Page 2 or 3 of the .. .
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Page 2, 106 point-MR. FUKUSHIMA: It must be your copy.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I think, it's a photocopier error.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Okay. Thank you. It appears that the lines that are in
mine shouldn't be in mine.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, it was just a technical error on the machines part, right?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I have, I have those lines, too.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: That's fine, then I have no questions.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Alright.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: So moved, Mr. Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Second.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Oh, we already have it on the floor, huh?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Oh, no, no we don't.
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CHAIR MOLINA: No we don't. We just under discussion right now. We, no formal
motion has been made yet. So, if there is no other questions at this point. Okay,
the motion has been made by-COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: We had it on the floor already?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: No, no.
CHAIR MOLINA: No motion was made yet until now. Okay, Mr. Kane has made a
motion to recommend a passage of the proposed bill and-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Second.
CHAIR MOLINA: --the filing of the communications and seconded by Member Tavares.
Okay, we're under discussion. Hearing no questions. All those in favor say
"aye."
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Aye.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Oh, wait. I'm sorry. Does Corp. Counsel have an issue? Oh, I
thought he had one.
CHAIR MOLINA: Members?
MR. FUKUSHIMA: No, I drafted this. It's perfect.
ALL: ... (Laughed) . .
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: We got issues.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: It's perfect. I apologize for interrupting the vote, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR MOLINA: That's okay. It's good to ask questions.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: I saw Howard getting excited, maybe he sees the light at the end
of the tunnel and it's beautiful.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Alright. Again, we shall take the vote for the record. Hearing
no further questions. All those in favor of the motion say "aye."
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Aye.
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VICE-CHAIR KANE: Aye.
CHAIR MOLINA: All those opposed? Thank you. The Chair will mark it unanimous.
VOTE:

AYES: Councilmembers Arakawa, Carroll, Kawano and Tavares,
Vice-Chair Kane and Chair Molina.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Councilmember Hokama

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: FIRST READING of proposed bill and FILING of
communication
CHAIR MOLINA: And this-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR MOLINA: Yes. Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Making a comment after the fact. I think it's really
moving in the right direction when we see these kind of bills come down to make
things easier for people in the, the owners of the houses. I mean, it's not a
developer's bill, this is for the, the people who are gonna eventually own the
house that, you know, paying fees or whatever. And I think it also covers what, I
think, is alluded to that if we ever get into . . . manufactured homes, that this
would really help that because those manufactured homes are pretty much all
the same also. So, I thank the Department for moving in this direction.
CHAIR MOLINA: I also wanted to add my thank you's to Mr. Goode in the interest of
expediency with the, this process. I think it really helps out a lot of people. And
just for the record for Item No. 40, the Managing Director or representative from
the Managing Director was not able to make it, so I just wanted to get that on
record. Members, any announcements?
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes.
CHAIR MOLINA: Mr. Arakawa.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Just, just as sort of commentary on this. I'm
assuming that this also includes any plan that somebody else has previously
done. So, it's, it's not just for a specific subdivision, it could be any type of plan
you have on record that they consider that . . . that it is on record and had been
reviewed.
CHAIR MOLINA: Mr. Goode.
MR. GOODE: Yeah, essentially this will allow anyone to come in and say, I want this
plan to be registered. For instance, Container Home Supply has at least 600
square feet ohana's. They can come in and say we want this registered and that
600 square feet ohana will basically go up, go up anywhere where the zoning is
appropriate.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Okay. Thank you very much.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Arakawa. And, Ms. Tavares, you had any comment?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah, Jo-Anne, would you like that handout that you
passed out on the Street Lighting Standard letter?
VICE-CHAIR KANE: You left it on the desk?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: If you leave it on the desk then you don't have to make
those copies.
MS. INOUYE-OGATA: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Yes, Ms. Ogata.
MS. INOUYE-OGATA: May I get clarification? Just for some clarification. So, is it the
Committees desire then to refer this matter to the Budget and Finance
Committee also?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: No. No, not yet.
CHAIR MOLINA: No. We'll just, my assumption is that we're gonna propose and
maybe Mister, Mr. Goode will get in contact with the Budget Chair about the
possible substitute for a fee proposal on this. Okay. Alright. Any other
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announcements, Members? If not, thank you very much for your patience,
desire, and cooperation. This meeting is adjourned.
ADJOURN: 11:00 a.m.
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MICHAEL J. MOLINk, Chair
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